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MEMORANDUM 
 
TO:  Rod Sando, CBFWA  

 
FROM: Michele DeHart 
 
DATE:  August 7, 2002 
 
RE: Prediction of adult returns based upon Spring Chinook Jack Counts and Steelhead 

adult counts at dams.  
 
 In response to your questions regarding spring chinook jack counts and steelhead returns 
in 2002, I recommend caution.  There are a lot of details to account for when considering the 
dam counts. This is particularly true if you are attempting to relate adult returns to a specific out 
migration year. Many of the recent declarations of success based upon dam counts might be 
misleading to policy makers and the public.  Recent history has shown us the danger of 
predictions, as those recently reported by the article in the Oregonian.  The same types of 
predictions based upon dam counts have been presented in past years and turned out to be 
erroneous.  

��There is nothing in the adult return data, or the PIT tag data that weakens the 
NMFS scientific basis for migration flows or spill for fish passage for in-river 
migrants. The success of the mass transportation of smolts in 2001 will not be 
determined until all of the adult return data is analyzed.  

��To date the steelhead return data reflects out migrants primarily from 2000 and 
1999. 

 
Spring Chinook returns 
 The attached memorandum from Michael Schiewe, NMFS to Usha Varanasi, NMFS was 
circulated in August of 1997. The memorandum, like the June 24, 2002 memorandum from 
Michael Schiewe to Brian Brown, NMFS, predicts returns from transportation, based upon 
returns of two-ocean fish. The prediction is based upon an assumption of proportion of age 
composition in the return from the 1995 out-migration year. The memorandum also based, upon 
partial tag returns predicts that there is no effect of bypass passage.  Several fishery management 
agencies raised their concerns with the NMFS memorandum at subsequent meetings. Concerns 
were documented in writing and provided to NMFS. A few examples are attached.  
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 Once the complete adult return data was analyzed it became apparent that the 
assumptions and conclusions in the NMFS memorandum and their early conclusions were 
inaccurate.  Management actions or decisions on the basis of the August 1, 1997 memorandum 
would have been wrong.  
 
Steelhead dam counts 

Statements have been circulated regarding the steelhead dam counts relative to the ten-
year average.  Some individuals are observing the steelhead dam counts as evidence that the 
2001 out migration conditions did not impact adult returns. The FPC recommendation is that the 
actual impact of the 2001 out-migration conditions will not be understood until all of the adult 
return data is complete. The following points explain the basis of our cautious recommendation. 

��The steelhead adult dam counts that have occurred prior to June 1, 2002 are comprised of 
individuals that out-migrated as juveniles in 1999 and 2000. These fish hold over in 
various parts of the river and continue their upstream migration in the spring of 2002. The 
steelhead count at Lower Granite Dam on May 30, 2002 was 12,424. The steelhead count 
at Lower Granite on August 2, 2002 is 17,764. Thus far 70% of the adult return of 
steelhead to Lower Granite Dam to date, is comprised of fish that out migrated in 2000 
and 1999.  

��Adult steelhead that returned as adults after June 1, 2002 will mainly be comprised of 
juvenile fish that migrated to the ocean in 2000 and 2001. (with a small proportion from 
1999).   

��Sampling takes place at Bonneville Dam to determine the age composition of returning 
adults, as well as hatchery/wild origin and length. 

��Most steelhead returning to the Columbia basin are1 ocean fish, and are referred to as the 
A-run. Steelhead originating from the Snake River include larger proportions of 2-ocean 
fish.  B-run fish in particular, which return to Dworshak Hatchery, and the Clearwater 
River and Middle Fork and South Fork Salmon River in Idaho are referred to as B-run 
and are comprised of large proportions (up to 85%) of 2- ocean fish. About half the 
Snake River wild steelhead are 2-ocean fish. 

��This means that the steelhead return in 2002 is only giving us a portion of the information 
about the 2001 out migration. Much of the 2002 adult return is coming from the better 
out-migration conditions that occurred prior to 2001 when Biological Opinion flow and 
spill measures were implemented to a greater degree. The proportion of fish in the 2002 
adult return that returned from the 2001 out-migration can only be determined by 
length/scale analysis and PIT tag returns. 

 
In summary, while there is regional hope that good ocean conditions and maximum 

transportation of smolts in 2001 averted a disaster, it is too soon in the process to declare victory. 
Historical information suggests the need to proceed with caution.  
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